LLLELLL LL*f

January 13", 2026
Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board

(dba) Camden County Developmental
Disability Resources

Open Session Board Meeting



Agenda



December 9t", 2025

Open Session Minutes



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES
Open Session Minutes of December 9th, 2025

Members Present Paul DiBello, Mary Hayslett, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson,
Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt

Members Absent Kym Jones
Others Present Ed Thomas, Executive Director
Guests Present Natalie Couch, Linda Platter, Jim Rogers (LAI)
Adrienne Anderson, Megan Thurman (CLC)
Jeanna Booth, Elizabeth Chambers, Lori Cornwell (CCDDR)

Presiding Commissioner Ike Skelton

Approval of Agenda

Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Ro Witt to approve the agenda as presented.

AYE: Paul DiBello, Mary Hayslett, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins,
Angela Richardson, Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt

NO: None
ABSTAIN: None
Motion carries.

Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for November 11, 2025

Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Ro Witt to amend the November 11", 2025 minutes to correct the
dates within the motion for Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for October 14" 2025 to
reflect October 14", 2025 instead of September 9™ and October 9™ and to amend Mary Hayslett’s vote for
Resolution 2025-34 to be an abstain instead of an aye vote due to her previous connection to LAIL

AYE: Paul DiBello, Mary Hayslett, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins,
Angela Richardson, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt

NO: None

ABSTAIN: Brian Willey because he was not present at the November 11, 2025, Board
Meeting.

Motion carries.
Mary Haylett also wanted to clarify that when she used the term “bonus” at the November meeting what

she was really asking was if agencies could be paid a 3% rate increase like what had been approved for
CCDDR employees.



Acknowledgement of Distributed Reports & Documents to Board Members

October 2025 Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSL) Monthly Reports
October 2025 I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) Monthly Reports

October 2025 Children’s Learning Center (CLC) Monthly Reports

October 2025 Lake Area Industries (LAI) Monthly Reports

October 2025 Support Coordination Report

October 2025 Agency Economic Report

October 2025 Credit Card Statement

Resolution 2025-41

Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements

Ike Skelton

Presiding Commissioner Ike Skelton reminded the Board that there are 3 people up for reappointment or
replacement at the end of December. He said there have been a good amount of applicants so what he
would like to do is have all of the applicants attend a public meeting that would be like an interview
process. He said that appointments or reappointments would occur then.

Angela Richardson asked if that meeting could be held in the evening for those who cannot leave work
during the day. He responded that yes, evenings are fine except for Wednesdays. He would like to have
the meeting and make appointments before the end of the year if possible. He said to send him an email
with a date and they would get it scheduled.

Angela Richardson said that she understood that he wanted to have a meeting with LAI and CCDDR. She
asked if that was still true. He responded that yes, it would probably be discussed at that public meeting.
Angela asked if other funded agencies like CLC and OSL should come so their voices are heard. He said
that yes, they can absolutely come to the meeting and would be given time to speak. He said the meeting
will primarily be an interview for the applicants. If the other issues are discussed it would only be if the
right people are there. That conversation could happen another night. The meeting will primarily be for
the appointment or reappointment of the Board members.

Motion by Ro Witt, second Angela St. Joan to add Ike Skelton to the guest portion of the meeting agenda.

AYE: Paul DiBello, Mary Hayslett, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins,
Angela Richardson, Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt

NO: None
ABSTAIN: None
Motion carries.

Monthly Reports

Our Saviors Lighthouse (OSL)

OSL is still providing group supports to 2 clients.

I Wonder Y Preschool IWYP)

IWYP is still providing 1-on-1 supports to 3 clients. One of those only uses services when school is not in
session.



Angela Richardson asked if OSL could provide a nice summary like the other agencies provide. She
really likes hearing the narrative part of the reports. Ed responded that he has asked for more information
and that he is going to try to set up a template or something OSL can use to just fill in the blanks each
month so a narrative can be provided. He knows OSL has a hard time getting the financial reports from
the treasurer. Ed said he could provide the template to all the funded agencies if they want to use it.

Children’s Learning Center (CLC)

The Step Ahead Program currently serves 39 children with 32 having special needs or developmental
delays. Current attendance includes 5 full-time 1-on-1 children, 1 1-on-1 child after school and 21 day-
hab children with varying schedules. CLC’s financial audit was finalized and she brought a bound copy of
the audit. The health department will be coming on December 11th for a special activity focused on
germs. Santa is coming to visit on Friday, December 19" and there is a great volunteer who has done this
for CLC for the last 3 years. CLC continues to seek First Steps providers. Pizza 4 a Purpose will be on
March 13" at 6 pm at Red Head.

Mary Hayslett noticed that CLC’s year-to-date net income is at negative $15,000. She said that having
some funds in an interest-bearing account would probably cover half of that deficit with interest.
Adrienne said that her Board is working on that now and will hopefully have some funds switched over
by the end of the year.

Lake Area Industries (LAI)

LAI had a total of 56 certified employees in November. Of those, 52 were CCDDR clients and 4 were
DESE only. November was very busy but there were only 18 business days in the month due to holidays
and the snow day. Packaging has been extremely busy and holiday kits are almost done. They should be
finished after one more production day. Creamer will be the next big push because another order is
coming and there are already 2 orders in-house. Another order of targets will also be coming in.

Offsite crews are doing well. There was a snow day where crews were not sent out but the customers
were very understanding. The crews are equipped to stay warm and are doing a good job. Camden on the
Lake has wrapped up for the season and a crew is still doing a little bit of work for the trap shooting
association to help keep it cleaned.

With the employment services, LAI has applied for licensure and certification and should hear back
within about a month with a checklist for that inspection. The next step after that is to get their contract.
They are very close to the finish line.

Not much recycling has been done because packaging has been so busy. Once packaging slows down,
they can resume shredding and be able to keep busy for the winter. have not been able to do a ton of
recycling because our packaging has been so busy. Um, but once we get through that push, we'll get back
on shredding.

LAI lost an employee of 25 years last week. She had a wonderful service, but it has been tough. There
have been lots of hugs and celebrating her life. There will be some donations received in her memory so
they will be figuring out how to best honor her.

LAl received a donation of $2,000 from the Laurie-Sunrise Beach Rotary Club. They used to do Pumkin
Chunkin Palooza and the talent show. The Club decided to donate their hours to the Shootout and
Cannonball Run. That was money from their efforts at those two events that they decided to turn around
and donate to LAI. LAI also sold butter braids, cookie dough, and pizza for their holiday fundraiser this
year and raised $1,900. There was a wonderful Thanksgiving celebration and lunch the Wednesday before
Thanksgiving. Leftovers were sent home with employees in need. There will be a big Christmas party on
the 19" and Santa will be visiting.



Committee Meetings (Updates)

None

Old Business for Discussion

None

New Business for Discussion

2026 Officers and Committee Members

Appointments or reappointments will hopefully happen by the end of the year. Ed asked that anyone who
is not up for reappointment go on ahead and send their interest in serving as an officer or on a committee
to Ed via email or state it now at the meeting. Officer elections and committees will be voted upon at the
January Board meeting if the appointments or reappointments have occurred before that meeting. Those
with terms expiring on December 31%, 2025, are Angela Richardson, Ro Witt, and Angela St. Joan.
Angela Richardson requested that Ed send out a list of all the officer positions and committees so that
everyone can see what their options are.

Mary Hayslett said she is new so she would be hesitant to run for an officer position, but she does have
expertise that would be helpful in the Treasurer role. She is interested in staying on the Budget
Appropriations Committee.

Ed asked for all interests to be sent to him no later than Wednesday, January 7%.

Financial Investment Recommendations

Ed recommended that certain restricted fund balances be moved to a Heritage Bank Money Market
Account in January or as soon as possible after officer appointments. It makes no sense to have officers
sign paperwork and then turn around and redo it if officers change at the January meeting. It is also not
yet known how much carryover funds will be available until after the first of the year. The interest rate for
the balance range would likely be 3.6%. A banking RFP will be issued no later than April so that banking
services can be reprocured. The RFP will include more diverse investment options.

Mary Hayslett asked for a ballpark estimate of what he thinks could be moved over. Ed responded that
without looking at the financials, he would estimate a maximum of 25% of anticipated revenue for the
next year which would probably be around $500,000. One interest rate is for up to $149,000 and the next
tier is the 3.6%. Ed said he would include a resolution to open the account at the January meeting.

TCM Contract Update

DMH finally sent out the TCM contract with the revised verbiage. The TCM Contract Committee at
MACDDS, which Ed serves on, has already reviewed it and sent it back to DMH with comments and
requests. The contract was supposed to begin on January 1% but instead, the current contract has been
extended through the end of February. Some of the concerns were that there were restrictions on what
TCM revenue could be used for. It specifically said that TCM revenue could not be used to supplant other
funds. TCM revenue is earned revenue and some use leftover TCM revenue to offset Partnership for
Hope expenses. The Partnership for Hope is the agreement with the State where counties split the
difference in the State’s portion of Medicaid waiver costs. This verbiage does not affect CCDDR because
it does not use TCM funds to pay for Partnership for Hope expenses. Once the revenue is earned, it does
not make a lot of sense to restrict where it can be spent. The other concern was about fingerprinting being



required before employment. That is nothing new for CCDDR since CCDDR has been fingerprinting
prior to employment for a long time. Some agencies do not fingerprint. In June, the Board did approve Ed
to sign the agreement if there were no glaring issues. He will send out a copy of the contract to everyone
as soon as he has the final version.

CCDDR Reports

October 2025 Support Coordination Report

There were 0 pending intakes at the end of October. There were 8 intakes approved in October. There was
1 transfer in, 1 transfer out, and 3 discharges throughout the month. Medicaid eligibility was at 82.12%
and Medicaid claims paid was at 98.97%. Rebilling was submitted today so more will be known about
that tomorrow.

October 2025 Agency Economic Report

As of October, YTD SB 40 Tax Program and Services Program income was higher than projected and
expenses were lower than projected in both programs. So far there are no overages on any line item.

Motion by Angela St. Joan, second Paul DiBello to approve all reports as presented.

AYE: Paul DiBello, Mary Hayslett, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins,
Angela Richardson, Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt

NO: None
ABSTAIN: None

Motion carries.

October 2025 Credit Card Statements

No questions and a vote not necessary.

Discussion & Conclusion of Resolutions

Resolution 2025-41: RFP 2025-1: Award for Cell Phone Services

Two companies submitted proposals. Verizon sent 2 options and AT&T sent 1 option. Ed sent out a
breakdown comparing the bids. There is still the option not to award the contract, but Ed would
recommend going with AT&T if the Board does choose to make an award. Ed estimates a savings of
$1,574.88 over one year by going with AT&T if the taxes are calculated correctly. Mary Hayslett pointed
out that the savings does not account for the administrative task of helping people with the phones,
replacing lost phones, and whatever other administrative efforts must go into it. She had to administer a
company phone plan in the past and it could be a hassle. Ed noted that there is accidental coverage on the
devices. He agreed that it will involve some administrative oversight.



Motion by Ro Witt, second Elizabeth Perkins to authorize the Executive Director to execute a contract
with AT&T.

AYE: Paul DiBello, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins, Angela Richardson,
Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt

NO: Mary Hayslett
ABSTAIN: None
Motion carries.

Open Discussion

The Commissioners are willing to have an evening meeting to have interviews and do Board
appointments and have any other discussions that come up at that point. Tuesday evenings work for most
of the Board. Ed will not be able to attend any meetings after the 18" because of his wife’s surgery. Most
of the Board is available on December 16™. Ed will reach out to Ike to see if December 16™ at 5 pm works
for the Commissioners. December 16" at 6 pm would be the second-best time. The backup date would be
January 12" at 5 pm or 6 pm.

Public Comment

None

Adjournment of Open Session

Motion by Laura Martin, second Ro Witt to adjourn the Open Session Board meeting and go into Closed
Session. A roll call vote was taken.

AYE: Paul DiBello, Mary Hayslett, Laura Martin, Elizabeth Perkins,
Angela Richardson, Angela St. Joan, Brian Willey, Ro Witt

NO: None
ABSTAIN: None

Motion carries.

The Open Session Board meeting was adjourned.

Board Chairperson/Other Board Member Secretary/Other Board Member



IWYP November
2025 Reports



	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	12-09-2025 Open Session Minutes
	Cover Page to IWYP Nov Reports

